
1 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, 

Colorado 81230 Telephone (970) 641-6065 • 

www.ugrwcd.org 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING  

Monday, May 22, 2023 at 1:00 PM 
at the Lake City Fire Station, 

131 N. Henson St, Lake City, CO 81235 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To be an active leader in all issues affecting the water resources of the Upper Gunnison River Basin. 

1:00  p.m. 1. Call to Order 

1:02   p.m. 2.      Agenda Approval

1:05 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda Items:  Any of the following items may be removed

for discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board

member or citizen.

• Approval of April 24, 2023 Minutes

• Approval of May 2, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes

• Monthly Budget Summary

• Consideration of Expenses

1:10 p.m. 4. Colorado Dust on Snow Program Update, Jeff Derry 

1:35 p.m. 5. Basin Water Supply Update 

1:40 p.m. 6. General Manager, Staff and Committee Updates   

• Treasurer’s Report

• General Manager’s Update

o Action Item: Reclamation Grant 
Resolution

http://www.ugrwcd.org/


2 

• Wet Meadows Program Update

• Taylor Local User’s Group Update

o May 5, 2023 Meeting Summary

• Education and Outreach Update
• Scientific Endeavors

• Gunnison Basin Roundtable Update

• Gunnison River Festival Update

• STOR Committee Update
• CBLT Long Lake Planning Committee

2:40 p.m. 7. Miscellaneous Matters 

• Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet

• Deadline for Board Renewal Letters of Application is May 26, 2023

2:45   p.m. 8. Citizens Comments

2:50 p.m. 9. Future Meetings

2:55 p.m. 10. Summary of Meeting Action Items

3:00 p.m. 11. Adjournment

This meeting will be followed immediately by the Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise meeting. 

Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  All times are approximate.  Regular 

meetings, public hearings, and special meetings are recorded, and action can be taken on any item. The Board may address individual agenda items at any 
time or in any order to accommodate the needs of the Board and the audience. Persons with special needs due to a disability are requested to call the District 

at (970) 641-6065 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.   



 

 

 

Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Lake City Fire Station 
131 North Henson Street 

Lake City, CO  81235 
 

AGENDA 
ANNUAL MEETING 

May 22, 2023 
3:00 P.M. 

 
 

3:00 p.m. 1. Call to Order 

3:02 p.m. 2. Agenda Approval 

3:05 p.m. 3. Election of Officers 

3:15 p.m. 4. Approval of May 24, 2022 Annual Meeting Minutes 

3:25 p.m. 6. 2023 Budget Summary Review, Discussion and Adoption  

   (7/1/2023-6/30/2024) 

3:35 p.m. 7. Current Operations Status 

• County Staff Training Update on Gate Operation 

• 2023 Operations Discussion 

4:00 p.m. 8. Miscellaneous Matters 

4:30 p.m. 9. Unscheduled Citizens  

4:35 p.m.  10. Future Meetings 

4:40 p.m.   11. Adjournment 

 

 
 
Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  All 
times are approximate.  Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings have documented minutes and 
action can be taken on any item. The Board may address individual agenda items at any time or in any order to 

accommodate the needs of the Board and the audience.  



AGENDA ITEM 3
Consent Agenda Items



 

1 

 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 

Monday, April 24, 2023 

 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District conducted a regular Board 

meeting on Monday, April 24, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. in the District office, 210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B, 

Gunnison, CO, 81230 and via Zoom video/teleconferencing. 

 

Board members present:  Joellen Fonken, Rebie Hazard, Stacy McPhail, Julie Nania (via Zoom), John 

Perusek, Michelle Pierce, Don Sabrowski and Andy Spann (via Zoom).  

 

Board members absent:  Rosemary Carroll, Michelle Pierce 

 

Others present: 

 

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager  

Cheryl Cwelich, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist I 

Zach Dutra (Lake Fork Valley Conservancy) 

Dan Feldman (SAIL) 

Katie Lawn (RMBL) 

John McClow, UGRWCD General Counsel  

Luke Mecklenburg, Colorado Attorney General’s Office (via Zoom)  

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist II 

Bob Robbins, Robbins Ranch 

Tom Rozman (Division of Water Resources) 

Jill Steele, Citizen (via Zoom) 

Sue Uerling, UGRWCD Admin. Asst/Communications Specialist 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Board Vice President Stacy McPhail called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2.       AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Director Joellen Fonken moved and Director Bill Nesbitt seconded approval of the amended agenda as 

circulated.  The motion carried. 

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail noted that the Financial Reports were being removed from the consent agenda 

for discussion.   



 

2 

 

 

Director Rebie Hazard moved and Director Joellen Fonken seconded approval of the March 27, 2023 

UGRWCD Board of Directors meeting minutes.  The motion carried. Director Nesbitt abstained. 

 

Director John Perusek moved and Director Rebie Hazard seconded approval of the April financial 

reports as provided at the meeting.  The motion carried.  

 

4. LEGAL AND LEGISLATIVE MATTERS 

 

Legislative Report:  General Counsel John McClow referred to the Legislative Report included in the 

packet and asked if there were any questions.  None were raised.  John noted that there are just two weeks 

left in the legislative session so the legislature is scrambling to try to pass another couple hundred bills 

before the session ends. Since the report came out last Thursday, a new bill was introduced into the senate 

concerning the creation of the Colorado River Drought Task Force. At the UGRWCD Legislative Committee 

meeting last Friday, the District decided to take a position in opposition to this bill. John will provide written 

details about this bill in the next Board packet but noted that an earlier draft  bill was designed to create a 

“drought security fund” with federal dollars to acquire water rights for compact security. John said the 

unofficial draft of the bill was initially introduced two weeks ago and was universally rejected at State 

Affairs Committee by all but a few proponents. Primarily because everyone felt more time was needed to 

create something so extensive.  The current bill is basically a recreation of that rejected bill under the 

disguise of a task force, except that the task force is now essentially directed to recommend a demand 

management program, which the District opposes.  The proposed task force would be comprised of 15 

members, 11 of whom are from the Western Slope, along with two transbasin diverters, the executive 

director of the Colorado Department of Natural Resources and the State Engineer.  John said he has written a 

letter explaining the District’s opposition to the bill and will share this with Board members tomorrow. 

 

Director Nesbitt noted that if the sponsors of this bill could show us that it would produce new water for the 

western slope, we would be for it.  

 

Proposed Bylaws Amendments:  John noted that there were several proposed amendments to the District’s 

Bylaws presented at the March Board meeting. The Board decided to think about the amendments. John 

asked if the Board had thought about the amendments and if they were ready to take action. John noted that 

one section of the Bylaws that will require some changes is the section dealing with public access to records 

through the Colorado Open Records Act.  John said there is a current bill that has been proposed in the state 

legislature that may require some new language but that revisions to this bill are still forthcoming.  

Therefore, he would like to see the final bill that is passed before making changes to that section of the 

District’s Bylaws. He noted that this would give Board members some time to put forth any suggestions they 

have about any of the proposed amendments. 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez said she would like to encourage the Board members to petition the judge to 

raise the maximum total annual compensation level to $2,400 which reflects the amount identified by the 



 

3 

 

state legislature.  This would give the Board the flexibility to change the compensation level anytime in the 

future if desired and making this change brings our Bylaws up to date.  She also stated that the District asks a 

lot from our board members and noted that we now have established committees which we didn’t have the 

last time we wrote our Bylaws.  Sonja indicated that there is a lot of meeting time and travel expense that 

goes uncompensated.  Sonja said the Board could elect to move forward with petitioning Judge Patrick to 

authorize the increase but could wait to determine what, if any increase,  the board might want to consider as 

part of next year’s budget process.   

 

Director Fonken asked for input from Director Nesbitt since he had been pretty passionate about 

disbursements.  Bill said he was not opposed to moving forward with petitioning the judge and that he does 

believe that reimbursement is important for Board members.  John reported that the current rate was set in 

1991 by the decree and that the judge would need to amend the decree to reflect the increase to $2,400 since 

the current decree stipulates a maximum of $1,200 per year.  

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail asked if the Board needed to take formal action at this time or if she could get 

a pulse from the Board about compensation in order to give John direction as he works on updating and 

amending the Bylaws.  John indicated that the Board could just give direction at this time. No Board 

members were opposed to moving forward with petitioning the judge for the increase.   

 

Director Nesbitt also suggested that the Finance Committee meet to discuss the finance policy before the 

Bylaws are completed. 

 

5. PRESENTATION BY KATIE LAWN, RMBL – SCHOOL FIELD TRIPS REPORT 

 

Katie Lawn, the Youth Programs Coordinator for the Rocky Mountain Biological Laboratory (RMBL), gave 

a presentation to the Board about the field trips for Gunnison Elementary School (GES) third and fifth 

graders last fall, which were funded in part by the District’s Education and Outreach budget. Katie explained 

that RMBL’s youth programming began in the early 1950’s as summer programming primarily for the 

children of the scientists who were working at RMBL.  The program has evolved significantly through the 

years, but always with the intention of “training the next generation of scientists.” 

 

In total, there were 140 Gunnison students who took part in the field trips, 70 students each from both the 

third and fifth grade and their teachers.  The third graders came in early September and the fifth graders 

came in late September 2022.  Each day, hands-on programming was offered for four hours with students 

rotating through learning stations at the RMBL location in Gothic.  The students learned to identify the 

watershed and collected data used for modeling.  The programming was designed to focus on the watershed 

and specifically cover state science standards required for third and fifth grade students.  

 

Katie noted that the programming was very well received by the students and teachers alike and that they 

will be tweaking the programming for this coming fall based on feedback they got from the teachers and 

students.  In the future, Katie would like to see the programming extended to more students, including 



 

4 

 

students from Lake City and she would like to see some pre- and post-field trip, classroom curriculum 

designed to continue covering the concepts taught in the field.   

 

Director Bill Nesbitt asked about how the District was recognized during the field trips.  Katie noted that this 

year, the students were told during the field trips that the District was helping fund the programming but that 

she would welcome promotional items or other ways to recognize the District next fall.  Bill also asked about 

extending this to more students.  Katie explained that she has been working with Sue Uerling to try to extend 

this programming to Lake City students. She also noted that RMBL already provides programming for 

students at the Crested Butte Community schools.  (Note:  the third and fifth grade students at GES were 

targeted by the District for these field trips as the state science standards specifically outline education 

components about the watershed for these grades.  Plus, the fourth grade GES students participate in the 4th 

Grade Water Festival.) 

 

Director Joellen Fonken asked Katie about her background.  Katie said she is not a scientist or a classroom 

teacher but has extensive training and experience in outdoor education. 

 

Director Don Sabrowski asked how the kids reacted to this experience.  Katie said the feedback they got 

from the students, teachers and even the bus drivers was great.  She noted that over fifty percent of the 

students from Gunnison stated that they had never been to Gothic before so this hands-on experience in the 

watershed is very meaningful. 

 

Katie noted that after Covid, bussing costs and the lack of drivers have really impacted the schools’ ability to 

do field trips. By providing a stipend directly to the school to assist with bussing costs, the District helped 

make these field trips possible. 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez encouraged Katie to come back to the District with a proposal of how the 

District might be able to partner with them to ramp up the watershed education opportunities.  Sonja also 

said that RMBL might consider submitting an Education and Outreach grant to the Gunnison Basin 

Roundtable.  Sonja offered that Sue could help and the District would share the grant requirements and 

deadline information with Katie.   

 

Katie also mentioned that since the SAIL mobile unit will not be at Gothic next fall, she is looking for a 

similar weather component for their programming.  She thanked the Board for their support of this 

collaboration and handed out RMBL newsletters. 

 

6. WELCOME TO ZACH DUTRA, LAKE FORK VALLEY CONSERVANCY 

 

Zach Dutra was introduced as the new Executive Director of the Lake Fork Valley Conservancy.  Zach 

updated the Board about some property acquired by the LFVC below the bridge and how they have goals to 

get signage erected on the property and get a path built to the lake.  Zach reported that LFVC has received 

over 100 responses to a community survey and that the surveys showed that the conservancy needs to work 



 

5 

 

on education and outreach as many survey respondents did not know the Lake Fork connects to the Gunnison 

River.  He also mentioned that the group has built a 30-foot yurt that has been used by a number of 

organizations and that they are working on some winter activities there for the school children, since the 

majority of the school year falls during the winter season. Zach also mentioned that he has been working 

with the District through Sue Uerling to try to encourage the Lake City Schools to participate in the RMBL 

school field trips.  General Manager Sonja Chavez encouraged Zach to reach out to the District with a 

funding proposal to help LFVC extend their outreach.   

 

7.  DINNER BREAK AND BASIN WATER SUPPLY UPDATE 

 

Water Resource Specialist Beverly Richards referenced her Basin Water Supply Report included in the 

Board packet.  Bev updated some of the data that has changed since she prepared the report over a week ago.   

Some highlights include that while the snowpack is starting to melt, due to some cold weather forecasted, it 

is predicted that the snowmelt will be slower this year which will result in much higher stream flows in mid 

to late May and early June.  Bev reported that they are not expecting much flooding here in the Upper 

Gunnison Basin, but that flooding is expected downstream of the Grand Mesa area as snowpack in that area 

is still averaging over 200 percent. 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt noted he found a blog by Chris Tomer very informational about weather and runoff 

predictions.  (https://christomer.com/blog/) 

 

Both Sonja and John commended Beverly on becoming an expert on watershed conditions through the many 

webinars and conferences she attends and presentations she regularly gives. 

 

8. PRESENTATION BY DAN FELDMAN, STAFF SCIENTIST OF LAWRENCE BERKELEY 

NATIONAL LABORATORY AND LEAD SCIENTIST FOR SURFACE ATMOSPHERE 

INTEGRATED FIELD LABORATORY (SAIL) 

 

Dan introduced himself and explained the SAIL study being conducted in the basin.  He titled the 

presentation “The Changing Face of Water in the West” and explained: (1) the scientific motivation for 

SAIL; (2) What SAIL is measuring; (3) What has been learned from the SAIL data; (4) Where to find the 

SAIL data; and provided a (5) Summary and Next Steps. 

 

Dan said the SAIL study is using an ARM mobile facility positioned in Gothic with some instrumentation 

also positioned at the top of CBMR.  Dan noted that the Upper Gunnison River Basin is the most heavily 

instrumented watershed in the nation.  He said the data they are collecting is being used to model watersheds 

all over the world and he noted that Director Rosemary Carroll is one of the top consumers of the SAIL data 

and that she is a great pleasure to work with.   

 

https://christomer.com/blog/


 

6 

 

He said SAIL is collecting data from the snowflake to the snowpack.  They literally take hundreds of pictures 

of snowflakes every second.  He said that while it is true that each snowflake is unique, their overall look on 

the photographs is very dependent on the water content of the storm and temperature.  Dan said they have 

been comparing data collected this year to snowpack trends during April from 1955-2016 and the trends are 

not good.  He said the range is huge and they are trying to narrow those trends to make accurate predictions 

for the future. One challenge for the project has been that according to Dan, precipitation measurement here 

is a “black hole” as the mountain west lacks weather radar systems to accurately track precipitation. 

 

Dan noted that their predictions of water availability in the west are a 20% decrease relative to historical 

averages in the next 20 years, a 25% decrease in the middle of the century, and just under a 40% decrease in 

snow water equivalency at the end of the century. In the Rockies, those numbers are 5, 20, and 30, 

respectively. Dan said this projection time-series of the percentage of water availability loss will have wild 

swings in it from year to year, which is nothing new to folks living in the West, but it’s going to be 

supercharged as climate change continues.  He said there will still be some years where water availability 

will be about normal, but more will not. 

 

Dan said there is much uncertainty in what is going to happen to the snow and that this is a result of how 

snow forms over the mountainous terrain. Snowflakes and raindrops form when air that has moisture in it is 

pushed over the mountains.  The air rises, cools, and drops its moisture.  In the mountains, this all happens a 

few miles above the surface but it happens in many different ways, which is why there are such dramatic 

differences in snowfall and rainfall in complex terrain, even at the same elevation.  Dan said data is needed 

to better understand how this precipitation is formed as it is sensitive to climate trends. For instance, when 

comparing SAIL’s data of falling snow against snowpack observations at the end of winter, the snowpack 

mostly follows cumulative snowfall, but not always. Their data shows hotspots of precipitation just to the 

west of CBMR where snowpack falls.  However, in some areas, such as the mountain valleys, that is not the 

case.  For those locations, the snow is falling and blowing elsewhere. 

 

Dan explained that in addition to the precipitation and weather data they collect, SAIL also collects a large 

number of aerosol measurements. He noted that the SAIL data are sensitive to dust, smoke, and cloud-

seeding, as aerosols darken the snow and also impact when and where it rains and snows. 

 

Dan said that SAIL has been providing data to NOAA scientists in hopes of getting more accurate medium 

and long-term forecast models.  Dan noted that the seasonal forecasts are really not very good and need to 

include more features for the sub-seasonal forecast, which SAIL is providing. These include modes of 

variability in the Pacific Ocean, the stratosphere, and the state of the land-surface.  For the seasonal forecasts, 

they need to include even more data, especially the details of El Nino and the energy at the surface.  

The SAIL data allows NOAA to perform direct tests of not just short-term, but also medium- and long-term 

weather forecasts.  From these tests, NOAA scientists are starting to propose changes to their forecast 

models. Scientists will connect these measurements to climate by looking at where storms come from, since 

this will change in the future.   

 



 

7 

 

In conclusion, Dan said water in the west is dwindling, but there is surprisingly little data on how it is 

changing. SAIL, and specifically the X-band radar on Crested Butte Mountain Resort, provides an 

unprecedented level of detail on precipitation patterns to shine a light on these changes. This data can 

directly inform weather, water, and climate forecasts, which in turn can allow for better water management 

practices during changing patterns. 

 

Dan said this SAIL campaign will end on June 15th and their mobile unit will be packed up and first moved 

to Los Alamos for recalibration and then moved to Tasmania.  Dan said they are hoping to be able to keep 

the weather radar unit around a bit longer as it belongs to Colorado State University. There is also the 

possibility of keeping some precipitation data collecting equipment.  

 

Director Bill Nesbitt asked if when there is a major volcanic event, how does this affect snowfall.  Dan 

replied that volcanic eruptions, especially the larger ones, definitely have a direct effect on weather patterns, 

including snowfall.   

 

Director Don Sabrowski asked that since it sounds like the location changes of the SAIL mobile unit are 

already set, if this could be changed at all by the water shortage issues of the Colorado River basin. Dan 

noted that the Department of Energy recognizes that the Colorado River does affect so many people in the 

west and that they want to have as much data as is possible to help forecast trends, but that there are water 

issues all around the world to be addressed.   

 

Director Bill Nesbitt asked Dan how helpful it is to SAIL to have politicians in their corner promoting their 

work?  Dan replied that Senator Michael Bennett has been helpful along the way in supporting SAIL. Dan 

said that the issues that this District is addressing with respect to decreased water availability from the 

Colorado River are not going to go away. Dan said that if scientists can work together with political leaders 

to bring more data to them and translate the data collected here to be useful for other basins around the 

world, this will be beneficial for all.  He said projects like SAIL help us understand what we do know and 

what we don’t know about our watershed and weather.  

 

9. GENERAL MANAGER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Treasurers Report:  Treasurer Bill Nesbitt reported that District is in a holding pattern right now with its 

investment portfolio. Bill noted that the two-year treasury note is paying 3.88 percent, while the five-year 

treasury note is paying 3.63 percent and the 10-year note is paying 3.52 percent, which Bill says doesn’t 

make any sense.  He said that usually, the longer the term the better the rate.  Bill said the bottom line is that 

the District’s money is safe and earning a decent rate of return at this time.  Later in the meeting, Bill noted 

that the feds are considering a .25 percent increase in interest rates in June 2023. 

 

General Manager’s Report:   General Manager Sonja Chavez referred to her memorandum included in the 

packet. 

 



 

8 

 

UCAR Dispute Resolution:  When the District found expensed amounts charged by UCAR for work done 

that had not been authorized, UCAR indicated it was a misunderstanding about needing to spend down the 

entire contract. The District has received an email from UCAR’s financial department stating that a 

reimbursement check for $13,653 will be issued to the District. The General Manager has implemented steps 

within the financial process to ensure that this doesn’t happen again.  Sonja said she continues to have a 

strong working relationship with UCAR and considers this matter closed.  Director Nesbitt asked if legal 

counsel was involved in solving this matter and Sonja noted that she had communicated with General 

Counsel and both agreed that the District had to dispute the charges and ask for the funds to be reimbursed. 

 

Spencer Condo Association Roof Replacement:  Sonja reported that the Condo Association entered into a 

contract with Bullet Construction for replacement of the roof and fascia at the Spencer Business Park.  She 

said that Bullet is currently picking up materials needed for the replacement and that they may start the 

project earlier than expected, perhaps as early as mid-June.  Director Nesbitt asked about the storage of the 

solar panels while the roof is being replaced and it was reported that the solar company has been contacted to 

take down the solar panels and that they will likely be storing the panels at their location until the panels 

need to be reinstalled.     

 

Water Quality Control Commission:  Sonja reported that at the WQCC hearing earlier in April, the 

commission approved table value standards for acceptable levels of chlorophyl a (chla). total nitrogen and 

total phosphorous for lakes and reservoirs in Colorado.  

 

Request for Qualification (RFQ) for Drought Contingency Planning Consultant Team:  Sonja reported 

that the District received two responses to the RFQ and that both entities were asked to respond to some 

additional questions about their proposals, which has slightly delayed the final decision.  Sonja said that 

although they do not have the final estimate of what the work will cost, she is expecting it to run around 

$180,000 including a District cash contribution of $30,000. 

 

Watershed Management Planning Committee and Wet Meadows Program Update:  Sonja referred to 

the WMP memorandum in the Board packet and asked Water Resource Specialist Cheryl Cwelich to explain 

the WMP Committee’s recommendation to fund a Wetlands Assessment and its correlation to the Wet 

Meadows Program.  Cheryl reported that the District received two proposals in response to the RFP from 

SGM and GEI Consultants, Inc. After the staff and UGRWCD WMP Committee review, there is a 

recommendation from the WMP Committee that the District contract with GEI Consultants, Inc. for wetland 

assessment services.  Cheryl asked Director Julie Nania if she was satisfied with the responses provided by 

GEI with respect the WMP’s questions and Julie replied “yes.”  

 

Sonja noted that this assessment was specifically considered and presented to the Board during the 2023 

Budget Planning Process during which time $100,000 was allocated for the project in case the grant funding 

didn’t come through. The grant was awarded and the initial bid by GEI is for $108,001. Funding sources 

identified to support this assessment include the 2022 America the Beautiful Challenge grant and additional 

funds from the Colorado Water Conservation Board stream management planning grant. 



 

9 

 

 

Director Stacy McPhail motioned to approve the recommendation of the WMP committee to enter 

into a contract with GEI Consultants, Inc. to conduct a Wetland Assessment in an amount not to 

exceed $108,000.  The motion carried. 

 

Cheryl reported that May 8th, 9th and the morning of May 11th will be the kick-off training for her work crew 

this summer.   

 

She also reported that the Ute Mountain Ute Cross-Cultural Exchange and Celebration on April 8th went very 

well with some very meaningful conversations and interesting exchanges.  She was particularly pleased that 

they saw over 200 birds at the lech. She was anticipating 20. She said that Gunnison County Commissioner, 

Liz Smith, was present and very excited to participate in planning and implementing next year’s event. 

Cheryl played a central role in communicating with the tribe and it was a good way of getting something 

started and then passing on the torch. She’ll happily continue to help with their restoration efforts.  

 

Education and Outreach Update:  

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez referred to the memo included in the packet as written by Communications 

Specialist Sue Uerling and asked if there were questions.  Director Bill Nesbitt suggested that the committee 

hold a meeting soon.  Sue Uerling stated that she had held off on this suggestion only because she was 

hoping there would be a new representative to replace Sara Bergstrom on the Board in June who might be 

interested in also taking Sara’s place on the Education and Outreach committee. Sonja also noted that no 

news can be good news as staff has an annual strategic plan that they carry out and that we report back 

regularly/monthly to the board to keep them up to date. 

 

 

TLUG Update:  General Manager Sonja Chavez reported that the Taylor Local Users Group (TLUG) met 

on April 6 and April 19.   

 

Director Don Sabrowski said the biggest task for TLUG right now is getting an accurate feel for snowpack 

and the timing and amount of runoff.  Don noted that during the April meetings while Erik Knight’s second 

report on April 19th indicated a 10 percent decrease in inflows to the Taylor, this still meant the water year 

would fall into the “Wet Year” category which calls for a 10-day flushing release, likely in June, at 445 cfs.  

Don indicated that some of the TLUG members have been suspect of the CBRFC forecast in the past and 

wondered what would happen if the actual inflows bring down the category to an “Average Year.”  Erik 

noted that this would result in just a five-day flushing release of 445 cfs. The committee will meet again on 

May 5, 2023 at 12:30 p.m. and are tentatively holding the date of May 26, 2023 at noon for a second 

meeting, if the mid-May report shows a significant difference from the May 1st forecast.   

 

Don and Sonja reported that there were two letters of interest submitted for the vacant “Property Interests” 

representative position on TLUG.  One was received from John Bocchino who lives on the upper Taylor and 



 

10 

 

one was received from David Fisher who lives in the Dos Rios subdivision just off of the Gunnison River.  

Don and Sonja noted that John Bocchino was very passionate about the conditions of the Taylor River, 

fishery and active at the TLUG meetings. It was noted that he works for Ernie Cockrell which will be left to 

the board to consider if it may be a conflict of interest. David Fisher has an extensive resume of experience 

including years of federal water engineering and extreme flood events as well as dam safety and emergency 

management. Staff noted that since the TLUG was established we’ve had representation from a Taylor 

property owner and not a Gunnison River representative to date. 

 

Director Stacy McPhail motioned and Director Bill Nesbitt seconded the appointment of David Fisher 

to the TLUG as the ‘Property Interests” representative.  The motion carried.  

 

Scientific Endeavors:  Director Rosemary Carroll was absent from the meeting. 

 

Gunnison River Festival:  GRF Director Cheryl Cwelich referred to her memorandum included in the 

packet and noted that a couple of the scheduled events have been moved due to anticipated streamflow 

conditions and Western student involvement. The QR code on the posters and media will be updated 

accordingly.  She also presented the 2023 river festival poster created by Western Colorado University 

student, Teagan Delaney, that was selected by the GRF board.          

 

10. MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS  

 

Director Rebie Hazard asked if there were any updates on the course of the avian flu in Colorado.  Director 

Stacy McPhail replied that according to the County Extension Office, there has been no new inforation, 

which she felt is good news.  Stacy did say the Avian flu is likely something we will live with on and off for 

a long time.  

 

Director Bill Nesbitt asked if there was any action taken with respect to the Southern Ute Tribe’s court 

hearing about the reintroduction of wolves in the state.  No updates were provided.   

 

11. CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 

No citizens elected to make comments. Tom Rozman was thanked for coming to the meeting. 

 

12. FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

A schedule of upcoming meetings was included in the Board packet.  (Special note:  the May UGRWCD 

Board Meeting and Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise meeting will be held in Lake City 

on Monday, May 22nd at 1 p.m. in the Lake City Firehall.) 

 

13. SUMMARY OF MEETING ACTION ITEMS 

 



 

11 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez and staff will be reviewing the responses given by the finalists to the RFP 

for the Drought Contingency Planning consultant. 

Education and Outreach as well as Finance Committee Meetings will be scheduled. 

 

General Counsel John McClow will submit updated revisions to the Bylaws for consideration at the May 

Board meeting. 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Board Vice President Stacy McPhail adjourned the regular April 24, 2023 Board meeting at 7:50 p.m. 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Rebie Hazard seconded that the Board go into executive 

session to discuss a potential property interest, receive legal advice from general counsel, and 

determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations. Motion carried. 

 

John McClow stated that the Board is authorized to meet in executive session for these purposes by §§24-6-

402(a), (b), and (e)(I), Colorado Revised Statutes. 

 

The Board entered into executive session. 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Rebie Hazard seconded moving out of Executive Session to 

take action on the matters discussed during the Executive Session.  The motion carried. 

 

At the reconvened regular Board meeting, Director Joellen Fonken moved and Director Rebie Hazard 

seconded the approval to pursue the purchase of the adjacent property, Unit A of the Spencer Avenue 

Business Park Condominiums.  The motion carried. 

 

Board Vice President Stacy McPhail adjourned the reconvened regular April 24, 2023 Board meeting 

at 8:50 p.m. 

 

As chair of the executive session, I hereby attest that the executive session held on April 24, 2023 was 

confined to the topic authorized for discussion in an executive session, as reflected by the minutes. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Stacy McPhail, Vice President 

 

 

 

 

 



 

12 

 

CERTIFICATION           

 

As attorney for the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District, I hereby attest that the 

executive session held on April 24, 2023 was confined to the topic authorized for discussion in an 

executive session, as reflected by the minutes 

 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

John H. McClow, General Counsel 

 

 

MINUTES SUBMITTED: 

 

 

___________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Stacy McPhail, Vice President 

 

 



 

1 

 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

Special Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 

Tuesday, May 2, 2023 

 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (UGRWCD) 

conducted a special Board meeting on Tuesday, May 2, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. in the District office, 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO, 81230 and via Zoom video/teleconferencing. 

 

Board members present:  Andy Spann, Bill Nesbitt, John Perusek, Michelle Pierce (via Zoom),  

Don Sabrowski (via Zoom),  Stacy McPhail (via Zoom), Julie Nania (via Zoom).  

 

Board members absent:  Joellen Fonken and Rosemary Carroll 

 

Others present: 

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager  

Cheryl Cwelich, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

John McClow, UGRWCD General Counsel 

Alana Nichols, UGRWCD Fellow 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Board President Michelle Pierce called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 

2.       AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director John Perusek seconded approval of the agenda as 

circulated.   

 

3. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2023-02 

 

Resolution 2023-02 is to authorize Board Vice-President Stacy McPhail to act as signatory for  

any and all instruments related to the Unit A Spencer Avenue Business Park Condominium 

Association purchase. 

 
Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Julie Nania seconded approval of Resolution 

2023-02 as presented.  The motion carried.   

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Board President Michelle Pierce adjourned the May 2, 2023 special Board meeting at 5:02 p.m. 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

___________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Michelle Pierce, President 

 

 



Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District
Monthly Budget Summary 2023

Apr 23 YTD 2023 2023 Budget % of Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
Asp Water Sales 7,844.71 19,558.62 20,920.00 93.49%
Cloud Seeding Income 0.00 63,750.00 140,750.00 45.29%
Interest Income 4,679.99 35,199.93 20,000.00 176.0%
Property Tax Income 151,478.15 773,230.31 1,598,974.00 48.36%
Reimbursed Exp Income

GRF Reimbursed Income 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.0%
LSC Reimbursed Income 0.00 0.00
Misc Income 34,172.32 34,172.32
UGRAWE Reimbursed Inc 0.00 0.00
Reimbursed Exp Income - Other 0.00 0.00

Total Reimbursed Exp Income 34,172.32 34,172.32 35,000.00 97.64%
Taylor-CWRPDA Hydro Income 0.00 0.00
Unspent Funds from Previous Yr 0.00 0.00
Watershed Mgmt Income

CWCB 2023-2404 Black Mesa Gen. 0.00 0.00
BOR DCP 2023-24 $140,480 0.00 0.00
Blue Mesa HABs Study 0.00 0.00
CWCB WMP (TBD) Grant Income 0.00 0.00
CRWCD CFP2021-15 Grant Inc 0.00 0.00
CWCB 2019-2891 $150,000 0.00 0.00
CWCB 2020-2113 $31,507 0.00 0.00
CWCB 2022-2085 $180,000 0.00 8,695.35
NPS 2021-4821 Grant Inc 0.00 0.00
TU Restore Grant Inc 0.00 0.00
Watershed Restore Program Inc 0.00 0.00
WMP CWCB PO 2023-3317 0.00 0.00
Watershed Mgmt Income - Other 0.00 0.00 435,018.00 0.0%

Total Watershed Mgmt Income 0.00 8,695.35 435,018.00 2.0%
Wet Meadows Income

USFS SPA 2018 Grant 0.00 32,941.05
BLM L17AC00255 0.00 113,222.31
BLM L19AC00207 Silt 0.00 43,186.64
NFWF Landscape 0.00 0.00
NFWF Phase II Grant Income 0.00 0.00
NRCS Grant Income 0.00 0.00
Wet Meadows BLM Grant Inc 0.00 0.00
WM USFS PA 18 Inc 0.00 0.00
Wet Meadows Income - Other 0.00 0.00 274,166.00 0.0%

Total Wet Meadows Income 0.00 189,350.00 274,166.00 69.06%
WQ Monitoring Inc 0.00 0.00 38,869.00 0.0%
Water Supply Income

CWCB NCAR Water Supply2023-2377 6,923.70 6,923.70
CWCB PO 2023-3158 0.00 0.00
Water Supply Income - Other 0.00 0.00

Total Water Supply Income 6,923.70 6,923.70
Additional Contribution Reserve 0.00 0.00 283,636.00 0.0%

Total Income 205,098.87 1,130,880.23 2,847,333.00 39.72%

 Page 1 of 4



Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District
Monthly Budget Summary 2023

Cost of Goods Sold
Cloud Seeding COST 60,907.32 113,591.40 189,060.00 60.08%
COST Grants 0.00 0.00
Cost of Goods Sold 0.00 0.00
NPS PO 2021-4821 COST 0.00 0.00
UGR&D CRWCD CFP2021-15 COST 0.00 0.00
Watershed COST

CRWD CFP Grant - HAB's 9,750.00 9,750.00
2023 GOCO Planning COST 0.00 20,000.00
CWCB 2020-2113 0.00 2,104.00
BOR DCP 2023-24 COST 0.00 0.00
CWCB WMP 2023-3317 14,280.00 16,020.00
2021-15 UG Restoration COST 0.00 0.00
CWCB  2022-2085 (Restore) COST 0.00 6,577.50
CWCB 2019-2891  COST 0.00 0.00
CWCB PO 2019 2891 COST 0.00 0.00
CWCB WtrShed Restore Grant COST 0.00 0.00
TU Restore Grant COST 0.00 0.00
UGR&D CRWCD CFP2022 COST 0.00 6,158.00
CWCB GBRT-PEPO 2023-2489 1,691.20 2,678.94
Watershed COST - Other 3,128.68 37,024.85 482,920.00 7.67%

Total Watershed COST 28,849.88 100,313.29 482,920.00 20.77%
Wet Meadows COST

FWS Sagebrush Ecosystem COST 10,199.99 17,999.99
BLM Coop  L17AC00255 COST 0.00 728.00
BLM L19AC00207 COST 0.00 0.00
CPW HPP COST 0.00 0.00
CPW Wetlands Grant COST 0.00 0.00
NFWF Phase II COST 0.00 0.00
NRCS Grant Exp COST 0.00 0.00
USFS 22-PA-11020400-050 0.00 1,350.68
USFS PA-2 17-PA COST 0.00 0.00
USFS SPA 2018 COST 0.00 0.00
2022 GOCO Planning COST 0.00 5,484.94
Wet Meadows COST - Other 0.00 4,427.22 294,166.00 1.51%

Total Wet Meadows COST 10,199.99 29,990.83 294,166.00 10.2%
WQ Monitoring COST

WQ Monitoring USGS JFA 2023 37,117.00 37,117.00
WQ Monitoring COST - Other 0.00 40,861.00 157,930.00 25.87%

Total WQ Monitoring COST 37,117.00 77,978.00 157,930.00 49.38%
Water Supply COST

CWCB/ NCAR #2023-2377 $14,998 255.58 6,923.70
CWCB PO 2023-3158 3,623.76 3,623.76
Water Supply COST - Other 0.00 0.00

Total Water Supply COST 3,879.34 10,547.46
Total COGS 140,953.53 332,420.98 1,124,076.00 29.57%

 Page 2 of 4



Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District
Monthly Budget Summary 2023

Gross Profit 64,145.34 798,459.25 1,723,257.00 46.33%
Expense

Reconciliation Discrepancies 0.00 0.00
1 Op X

Donation-Endangered Fish 0.00 0.00
Admin.Travel & Exp. 1,728.24 12,280.09 35,000.00 35.09%
Audit and Accounting 6,001.35 17,487.04 10,000.00 174.87%
Bad Debts 0.00 0.00
BOD Expenses 0.00 5,060.04 15,000.00 33.73%
BOD Mileage 0.00 642.25 2,200.00 29.19%
BOD Mtg Fees 0.00 0.00 13,360.00 0.0%
Bonding and Insurance 0.00 434.00 12,003.00 3.62%
Building Rep/Maint 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%
Computer Exp

Computer Asset Purchase 0.00 2,174.27
Computer Repairs 0.00 0.00
Computer Software 336.98 6,889.39
Internet 778.26 2,891.76
Computer Exp - Other 400.00 3,822.47 22,850.00 16.73%

Total Computer Exp 1,515.24 15,777.89 22,850.00 69.05%
Copier Expenses 242.89 1,760.61 5,000.00 35.21%
County Treasurers' Fees 4,553.68 27,225.21 47,969.00 56.76%
Donation RMBL Weather 0.00 0.00
Donation Selenium Program 0.00 0.00
Dues, Memberships&Subscriptions 99.99 8,394.44 15,000.00 55.96%
Election Expenses 0.00 0.00
Legal Publication 833.50 4,263.19 6,000.00 71.05%
Manager's Discretionary 11,542.77 15,930.33 25,000.00 63.72%
Meeting Expenses 0.00 509.48 4,000.00 12.74%
Office Equipment Exp 320.68 390.69 21,500.00 1.82%
Office Supplies & Misc Expenses 1,360.09 3,523.70 21,250.00 16.58%
Payroll Exp

CRA Retirement Plan 3,730.64 14,922.56
Medical Insurance 3,645.60 17,850.60
Payroll Taxes 3,529.20 13,802.61
Salaries - Admin 30,300.75 121,203.00
Salaries - Staff 14,549.25 55,794.85
Staff Development 206.24 874.02
Work Comp Ins 2,259.00 3,995.00
Payroll Exp - Other 0.00 0.00 762,354.00 0.0%

Total Payroll Exp 58,220.68 228,442.64 762,354.00 29.97%
Postage 0.00 63.00 1,500.00 4.2%
Public Outreach

4-H Sponsorships 0.00 0.00
Donation GRF 0.00 0.00
Internship 0.00 0.00
Mini-Grants 0.00 0.00
Public Ed./Advertising 1,976.13 10,331.33
Social Media 0.00 0.00
Website Updates 0.00 774.00
Youth Conservation Corps 0.00 0.00
Public Outreach - Other 1,180.00 1,640.92 61,680.00 2.66%

Total Public Outreach 3,156.13 12,746.25 61,680.00 20.67%

 Page 3 of 4



Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District
Monthly Budget Summary 2023

RICD Exp 0.00 0.00
Telephone 1,119.64 2,872.94 7,110.00 40.41%
Utilities, Clean, Condo Dues 809.71 9,999.83 15,516.00 64.45%
Vehicle Expenses - Toyota Highl 117.77 274.08 4,525.00 6.06%
1 Op X - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 1 Op X 91,622.36 368,077.70 1,118,817.00 32.9%
2 Non-Op X

Lake Fork Conservancy 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%
Coal Creek Watershed Coalition 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%
City of Gunnison Cleanup 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0%
Asp Subordination Report 0.00 5,040.00 22,040.00 22.87%
Aspinall Contract Costs 0.00 18,494.59
Cloud Seeding 0.00 0.00
Consulting/Engineering 0.00 6,520.63 15,000.00 43.47%
Contribution to Reserve Fund 0.00 0.00
Donation Dust on Snowpack 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 100.0%
Drought Contingency Cont 0.00 0.00 44,000.00 0.0%
Endanger Fish Recovery Program 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0%
Home Loan Program Cont 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.0%
Legal Fees/Projects 0.00 0.00
LSC Expenses 0.00 0.00 13,464.00 0.0%
RMBL (Basinwide Planning X) 0.00 0.00
Regional Water Supply Imp. Exp. 0.00 0.00
Grant Program 303.75 40,202.62 300,000.00 13.4%
Spencer Ave Res Exp 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%
Taylor Park Projects Exp 7,436.00 7,436.00 7,436.00 100.0%
Taylor River Modeling Exp 0.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.0%
Watershed Mgmt X 0.00 1,919.52
Wet Meadow X 0.00 0.00
WQ Monitoring 0.00 0.00
2 Non-Op X - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 2 Non-Op X 7,739.75 83,113.36 580,440.00 14.32%
Capital Outlay Expense 0.00 0.00
SUSPENSE 0.00 0.00

Total Expense 99,362.11 451,191.06 1,699,257.00 26.55%
Net Ordinary Income -35,216.77 347,268.19 24,000.00 1,446.95%
Other Income/Expense

Other Income 0.00 0.00
Other Expense

Contingency 0.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.0%
Depreciation Expenses 0.00 0.00

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.0%
Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 -24,000.00 0.0%

Net Income -35,216.77 347,268.19 0.00 100.0%

 Page 4 of 4





















SRC















SRC





SRC



































1 (\ r: ' r I r;:- • '·' � - C C>NTl<P,C ( A /--401.JAJ? 

A--

1 • ,� () • ('I r. '1

c r ,.... : . ,, I'. 

Wdl j'w.- �w fuL I� 
t;xe.u.t,,k,J Orll � 
�c.£,\V�. 

- l36 LA '-'Ct. t,v St"-.. IC..t. ·r.c..(. _f'"L �v1E

- 7·� ,J': r (:k / l: (. �":·L ..,

l�f nDW
J 
lttY1 �av.. p/tate,

� 4 �r£fum 















SRC







SRC
$11.62











SRC



























SRC











SRC



SRC



SRC

















SRC













SRC







SRC











































SRC















SRC































AGENDA ITEM 4
Jeff Derry, Dust on Snow in San Juan Basin



AGENDA ITEM 5 
Basin Water Supply Report



1 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: UGRWCD Board Members 
 
FROM: Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist 

 
DATE: May 12, 2023 

 
SUBJECT: Basin Water Supply Information 
 

The information supplied as part of this memorandum is a monthly feature and includes 
information about drought, precipitation, snowpack information, streamflows, reservoir storage, 
and the Upper Gunnison Cloudseeding Program.   
 
Current Conditions – Drought and Precipitation 
 
As shown in the map from the US Drought Monitor dated May 9, 2023, a large portion of the western 
slope of Colorado continues to register no drought conditions which is based upon short-term 
conditions.  Hinsdale County remains at 100% of the county in no drought conditions; however, a 
small portion of Gunnison County (5%) is now indicating abnormally dry conditions.  Saguache 
County dropped from 79% of the county with no drought conditions to only 39% of the county.  This 
return of drought conditions can be attributed to lower precipitation amounts through the rest of April 
and into the early part of May in these areas. 

 
 

 



2 
 

 

Precipitation in the Upper Gunnison River Basin since April has been dry compared to the  
previous month’s report.  As shown in the figure below dated May 9, 2023, precipitation amounts 
in the past 30 days have ranged from 100% in small portions of all three counties to no precipitation 
in areas of southern Saguache County.   

 

Currently, forecasts are not focusing on the long-term forecasts (30,60,90 days) as there is 
considerable uncertainty concerning the development of the El Niño-Southern Oscillation (ENSO) 
system.  An El-Niño weather pattern typically means warmer ocean temperatures in central eastern 
tropical Pacific Ocean.  This could lead to increased precipitation and colder temperatures from 
the south rather than the north as occurred in the last El-Niño year of 2018-2019.  However, the 7-
day forecast provides more information about precipitation amounts.  This figure dated May12, 

SC HC 



3 
 

 

2023, shows that the Upper Gunnison River Basin could see precipitation amounts ranging from 
.05 to 3.0 inches. 

 

Snowpack and Streamflows 

Snowpack for the entire Gunnison River Basin still remains high but the amounts reflected in the 
figure below are based upon the historical average period of 1991-2020 on May 12th.  These 
amounts may appear high because typically, runoff has already begun this time of year.  There is 
signficant snowpack still remaining and registering at high elevations.  The entire Gunnison 
River Basin is currently at 181% of average for May 12th, while the Upper Gunnison River sites 

SC 
HC 



4 
 

 

are recording around 120% of average.  This is reflected in the figure provided below, NRCS, 
May 12, 2023.   

 

Forcasters indicate that temperatures will remain on the cold side for the next thirty days as 
indicated in the figure below which forecasts up to a -3 degree departure from the normal 
temperatures for this time of year in some areas.  However, in parts of Gunnison and Saguache 
counties, the temperatures may be 1 degree above the normal temperatures for this time-frame. 
This figure was provided by the US Drought Monitor dated May 9, 2023. 



5 
 

 

  

Runoff has truly begun in the Upper Gunnison Basin with periods of warmer temperatures in the 
past month.  This is shown in the Upper Gunnison River plot provided below, NRCS, May 12, 
2023.  According to this plot, snow water equivalent reached its peak on April 9 and is 
continuing to decline.  This chart indicates that, if the current pattern follows, peak runoff may 
occur earlier than the historical 1st week in June.  This will of course depend upon weather 
conditions and temperature. 

SC 
HC 



6 
 

 

 
 

Streamflow Information 

In the Upper Gunnison Basin, all streamflow gages are recording increases in flow.  The 
streamflow amounts have been quite variable due to cooler conditions, and this is reflected in the 
hydrograph provided below.  The spikes in flow indicate warmer weather and the dips indicate a 
cool down. 

 

 

Warmer Weather 

Cooler Weather 



7 
 

 

Streamflow information throughout the basin is provided in the table below.  As shown, there are a 
number of stream gage sites that are below the historical average for May 12th and this could be due in 
part to cooler weather conditions and there can be considerable fluctuations due to conditions changing 
from cool to warm.   

 

Station Name May 12 (cfs) Historical Average 
May 12 (cfs) 

Gunnison River near Gunnison 1,990 1,508 
Gunnison River at Gunnison Whitewater Park 2,040 1,251 
Tomichi Creek at Sargent’s 230 164 
Tomichi Creek at Gunnison 487 325 
Taylor River at Taylor Park 208 198 
Taylor River blw Taylor Park Reservoir 297 187 
Taylor River at Almont 524 479 
Slate River abv Baxter Gulch 561 408 
Coal Creek abv McCormick Ditch* 92 94 
East River blw Cement Creek 1,100 780 
East River at Almont 1,180 901 
Ohio Creek near Baldwin 430 324 
Lake Fork blw Lake San Cristobal* 120 124 
Henson Creek at Lake City* 144 158 
Lake Fork at Gateview* 337 354 

*These gages are below the historical average for May 12th  

According to Paul Miller from NOAA at the NIDIS Drought Webinar presented on May 9th, it is 
typical to have snowmelt occur in the month of March; however, there was no to very little 
snowmelt occurring this year in most of the western states.  Most of the melt that has occurred 
since March has been in the lower elevations.  He also indicated that while dust on snow does 
impact the melt rate, this year there was not as much of an impact as there was last year.  As a 
follow up to dust on snow information, Jeff Derry with CODOS reported on May 10th that layers 
of snow are now coming to the top and the melt rate could increase which will be seen in the 
streamflow rates.   

Reservoir Storage and Operations 

Reservoir storage in the entire Gunnison Basin is at 69% of full, which is an increase from last 
month’s report of 13%.  The reservoirs in the Upper Gunnison Basin including Taylor and Blue 
Mesa, are at 61% and 53%, respectively.  This is reflected in the tea-cup diagram below dated 
May 11th. 



8 
 

 

 

Reservoir storage in the Upper Colorado River Basin is now at 61% full.  This is reflected in the 
tea-cup diagram below dated May 9th.  The current forecast for inflows into Lake Powell is at 11 
million acre-feet (maf) which is 172% of normal.  

 



9 
 

 

When asked at the NIDIS webinar how long it would take to replenish water supplies in these 
basins, Paul Miller indicated that it would take three years just like 2022-2023 with no water use 
to fill the reservoirs.  However, since water use continues, he said it could likely take six to eight 
years consecutively to replenish water supplies. 

Aspinall Unit Operations: 

The following operations information was provided by the Bureau of Reclamation at the Aspinall 
Operations meeting on April 20, 2023 and from the Aspinall Unit Operations page dated April 10, 
2023. 

As of May 11th, Blue Mesa content is at 441,781 which is 53% of average.  The unregulated inflow volume 
in March into Blue Mesa was 24,600 acre-feet which is 65% of average, they have not provided amounts 
for April at this time. Unregulated inflow volumes forecasted for Blue Mesa for the next three months 
(April, May and June) are projected to be: 60,000 acre-feet or 77% of average; 265,000 acre-feet which is 
132% of average; and 395,000 acre-feet or 158% of average, respectively.    

The unregulated inflow volume forecasted for WY2023 is projected to be 1,101,000 acre-feet which is 
122% of average.  The unregulated inflow for the water supply period of April-July is forecasted to be 
850,000 acre-feet or 134% of average.  According to a WRF-Hydro update from Dave Gochis on May 11th, 
the model’s forecasted unregulated inflow into Blue Mesa will be 900,600 acre-feet which is 99% of 
average.  Blue Mesa is currently at an elevation of 7472.05 feet which is 53% of capacity.  By the end of 
WY2023 projections are that Blue Mesa will contain 675,000 acre-feet of storage which will be 
approximately 82% of capacity. 

Cloudseeding Report (North American Weather Consultants; NAWC) & Snow Water 
Equivalent (SWE) in the Snowpack: 

The weather pattern for the first two weeks of April was significantly drier and milder when compared 
to the rest of the winter season.  There were only two storm events for this period that were considered 
suitable for seeding activity.  The Lake Irwin remote generator was not used during the month of March 
or April , due to mechanical issues with the ignition component. NAWC is unable to service the remote 
generator due to it being buried under several feet of snow. They will update the District on the 
generator when additional information becomes available. 
 
The number of generator hours used for April was 181.75 hours.  This includes 43.5 hours for the Black 
Mesa remote generator. SWE accumulation information for the month of March is provided in the table 
below.   
 

Dates 
SNOTEL SITES (SWE Accumulation – inch) 

Scofield Pass Park Cone Porphyry 
Creek 

Slumgullion 

April 3-4 1.2 0 0.2 0.1 
April 14-15 0 0.1 0.2 0.1 
Totals: 1.2 0.1 0.4 0.2 

 



10 
 

 

As of April 17, 2023, SNOTEL observations from the NRCS (table below), show that the 
percentage of total SWE for the Upper Gunnison River Basin is at 135% of average, while the 
water year-to-date precipitation percentage is 130% of average.   
 

Site 
Snow Water 

Equivalent (inch) 
Water Year 

Precipitation (inch) 
4/17/23 Median % 4/17/23 Median % 

Butte 20.5 12.6 163 21.4 15.8 135 
Park Cone 14.6 9.6 152 16.6 11.4 145 
Porphyry Creek 17.6 15.2 116 18.9 16.3 116 
Schofield  46.4 13.8 193 45.9 31.2 147 
Slumgullion 12.9 14.4 90 13.8 14.7 94 
Upper Gunnison Basin %   143   127 

The Upper Gunnison Cloudseeding Program ended April 15, 2023.  A final report will be prepared 
for distribution and should be received no later than June 1st.  Staff attended the annual 2023 
Weather Modification Conference in Westminster, Colorado.  The conference involved numerous 
technical presentations about ongoing cloudseeding research in Idaho and other areas in the 
Northwest.  There were also several presentations about cloudseeding used for rain enhancement 
and hail suppression in areas experiencing drier or drought conditions such as North Dakota, 
Texas, Romania, and United Arab Emirates.   

 



AGENDA ITEM 6
Treasurer’s Report



AGENDA ITEM 6
General Manager and Committee Updates



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:   Board of Directors 

FROM:  Sonja Chavez 

DATE:  May 16, 2023  

SUBJECT:  General Manager Update & Committee Reports (May) 

 

 

I. Treasurer’s Report 

 

II. Miscellaneous  

 

A. Resolution: U.S. Bureau of Reclamation - Snow Water Supply Measurement Grant 

On May 12, 2023, the UGRWCD submitted a grant application funding request to the U.S. 

Bureau of Reclamation for $1M to support the Upper Gunnison River Basin Snow Water 

Supply Measurement grant proposal. As part of the that proposal, the UGRWCD pledged 

$297,549 of in-kind services and cash match contribution which we summarize and explain 

below. 

 

First, following is a summary of the grant request: 

The lack of accurate snow measurement, precipitation data and resulting forecasts for annual 

water supply and reservoir inflows creates significant problems for water managers in the greater 

Colorado River Basin and specifically the Upper Gunnison River Basin in Colorado. In 2016, the 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (UGRWCD) in Gunnison Colorado began 

working with the National Center for Atmospheric Research (NCAR) to develop an alternative 

model for Taylor Park Reservoir using WRF-Hydro for stream and reservoir inflow forecasting 

and in 2022 assimilated Airborne Snow Observation (ASO) measurements into the model. The 

result was a 3% error in measurement of Snow Water Equivalent (SWE) in the Taylor and East 

River Basins which significantly improved management of available water supplies.   

From October 2023 through September 2026, the UGRWCD will utilize Reclamation funding to 

conduct two ASO snow surveys per year over 3 years in the Upper Gunnison Basin where we have 

two federal Reclamation facilities (Taylor Park Reservoir and Aspinall Unit). ASO and localized 

doppler gap weather radar technology and data will be incorporated into Colorado Basin River 

Forecast Center (CBRFC) and WRF-Hydro models to compare and contrast model forecasting 

ability as compared to actual hydrology.  The UGRWCD will measure and quantify stream and 

reservoir inflow via a strategic network of stream flow gauges.  

Because the UGRWCD is so much further along in WRF-Hydro model development and 

incorporation of ASO data, Reclamation will be able to more quickly assess impacts and benefits 

to snow measurement technology and model forecasts and the UGRWCD will be able to more 

quickly share results with others considering use of the same technology.   

 



 

 

As part of the grant application, the UGRWCD has pledged $297,549 of in-kind cash match 

contribution of which $197,229 will come from existing annual programs run by the 

UGRWCD over three years (e.g., annual streamflow monitoring and Taylor WRF Hydro 

model development) and the remaining $100,320 as new cash match contribution (See 

Summary Funding Tables 1 and 2 below).  

 

Several items of importance to mention are that: 

1) CWCB will be paying for $67,500 of the UGRWCD $97,500 three-year expense for 

Taylor WRF-Hydro model development and refinement; and 

2) UGRWCD charged a 10% federal indirect cost recovery of $97,756 to the grant. This 

funding covers three years of UGRWCD staff project, fiscal and grant administrative 

management expenses as well as fringe benefits (e.g., staff salaries, payroll taxes, 

workers compensation, health insurance, life insurance, dental insurance, retirement, 

etc.) as well as building insurance, building operation and maintenance overhead, 

utilities, etc. 

This leaves the UGRWCD with overall net income of $64,936 to support indirect costs 

and staff time providing technical assistance, and contractual, project and fiscal 

management of the grant. 

$  97,756 as reimbursed expenses income 

$  67,500 as reimbursed expenses income 

- $100,320 as UGRWCD new cash expenditures pledged to grant 

$64,936 net income over expenditures 

 

 

 

 

Table 1. Summary of Non-Federal and Federal Funding Sources

FUNDING SOURCES AMOUNT

Non-Federal Entities

1. Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy 297,549$             

2. Lake San Cristobal WAE (Annual JFA Stream Gauges) 40,668$               

3. Gunnison County (Annual JFA Stream Gauges) 10,164$               

4. Town of Crested Butte (Annual JFA Stream Gauges) 19,230$               

5. Mt. CB Water & Sanitation (Annual JFA Stream Gauges) 10,167$               

6. City of Gunnison (Annual JFA Stream Gauges) 58,800$               

7. Colorado River Water Conservation District (Annual JFA 

Stream Gauges) 31,932$               

8. Taylor Local Users Group* 7,920$                 

9. Colorado Water Conservation Board (State of Colorado) 67,500$               

10. Western Water Weather Intelligence Center* 1,000,000$          

Non-Federal Subtotal: 1,543,933$          

REQUESTED RECLAMATION FUNDING 999,999$             



 

 

 
 

 

B. Spencer Avenue Condominium Association Roof Replacement 

 

As of May 12, 2023, the UGRWCD is the new owner of Unit A, Spencer Avenue Business 

Park Condominium Association. 

Management is looking into hiring a structural and architectural engineer to assist with a 

scope of work, plans and specs for putting a new door from Unit A to Unit B (Board 

Room) which we can then put out to bid for construction. In addition, we are looking into 

concerns related to heating and cooling of the second-floor space. We’ve heard from 

BLM that the space was very cold in the winter and very hot in the summer. BLM staff 

were using window swamp coolers in the summer which are not efficient and caused 

moisture damage around window frames and broken screens. At this time, we are not 

sure whether there’s a problem with the HVAC system, inadequate insulation or both. 

These issues need to be addressed before moving tenants into the space. 

 

UGRWCD Management has received an inquiry about leasing the Unit C space (current 

UGRWCD office) as well as the upstairs office space. 

 

Working with Stoeber CPA, we have also consulted with our auditor and sought 

recommendations on preparing a budget amendment and the best way to track expenses 

associated with leasing space as well as when to conduct the budget amendment.  The 

advice we received was that the budget amendment could be completed at the same time 

that we are holding public hearings for our 2024 budget. 

 

Management is working to provide the Board with estimated expense details and budget 

associated with preparing the space next door.   

 

C. Drought Contingency Plan (DCP) Consultant Team Selection 

 

The UGRWCD received two responses to the request for qualifications (RFQ) for DCP 

development. Both teams were highly qualified. Staff and the (RFQ) review team have 

selected the Strategic by Nature & Harris Engineering (SBN Team).   

 

III. Watershed Management Planning (WMP) Committee Update 

 

Table 2. Total Project Cost Table

SOURCE AMOUNT

Costs to be reimbursed with the requested federal funding 999,999$             

Costs to be paid by the applicant 297,549$             

Value of third-party contributions 1,246,384$          

TOTAL PROJECT COST 2,543,932$          



 

 

The Team continues to conduct education and outreach activities related to the Wildfire 

Hazard and Zones of Concern Assessment and Phase 1 of the Geo-fluvial Assessments. 

Presentations were held for local agencies and the Lake City Council On May 3rd.  

 

Phase 2 of the geo-fluvial assessments has commenced.  

 

IV. Wet Meadows Program 

 

See attached memorandum from the Wet Meadows Program Coordinator, Cheryl Cwelich.  

 

V. Education and Outlook Committee 

 

See attached memorandum from Sue Uerling, Education Committee 

 

VI. Taylor Local Users Group 

 

Minutes from the May 5th TLUG meeting have been provided in the Board packet. 

 

VII. Taylor Adaptive Management Work Group 

 

Verbal update from Cheryl Cwelich (Water Resource Specialist). 

 

VIII. Education and Outreach Update 

 

See attached memorandum from Sue Uerling (Communications Specialist). 

 

IX. Scientific Endeavors 

 

Verbal Update from Director Rosemary Carroll. 

 

X. Gunnison Basin Roundtable Update 

 

Verbal Update from General Manager. 

 

XI. Gunnison River Festival (GRF) 

 

See attached memorandum from Cheryl Cwelich, Executive Director of the GRF. 

 

XII. Strategic Tourism and Outdoor Recreation.  

 

STOR continues to work on strategic planning. Next Meeting is May 25th (2pm-4pm) at 

the Blackstock Building. 

 



 

 

XIII. CBLT Long Lake Planning Committee 

 

Verbal Update from Director Rosemary Carroll. 

 



Resolution 

2023-03 

WHEREAS, the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (District) was established in 1959 by a 

vote of its taxpayers pursuant to the Water Conservancy Act.  The Colorado General Assembly authorized  

conservancy districts “to provide for the conservation of the water resources of the state of Colorado and for the 

greatest beneficial use of water within this state.”  The  District’s enabling documents provide that it was created 

to conserve the waters within the District, defend and protect those waters and the water rights and interests of 

the owners thereof.   

WHEREAS, the mission of the District is to be an active leader in all issues affecting the water 

resources of the Upper Gunnison River Basin; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed and strongly supports the Snow Water Supply 

Forecasting Program grant application to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) for 

participation in an Upper Gunnison River Basin Snow Water Supply Forecasting grant project. 

And, if the grant is awarded, the District supports the completion of the project; and, 

WHEREAS, by law, the Board of Directors is authorized to commit the District to the financial and 

legal obligations associated with receipt of a financial assistance award; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has requested $999,999 from Reclamation through the Snow Water 

Supply Forecasting Program for fiscal year 2023 (R23AS00079); and, 

WHEREAS, the District has sufficient assets to provide the funding and in-kind contributions 

specified in the funding plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE,  IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT: 

If the grant is awarded, the District will work with Reclamation to meet established deadlines for 

entering into a grant or cooperative agreement. 

If the grant is awarded, the District's General Manager, Sonja Chavez, is hereby authorized to 

enter into a grant agreement with the Bureau of Reclamation. 

If the grant is awarded, the District authorizes the expenditure of District cash funds in the amount 

of $297,549 as specified in the funding plan. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the duly elected and qualified Secretary of the Upper Gunnison 

River Water Conservancy District and the keeper of the records and seal of said District and that 

this is a true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of 

Directors of said District held in accordance with the Bylaws of said District on the 22nd day of 

May, 2023. 

____________________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary

[SEAL] 



 

1 

Wet Meadows Program Memo_05.11.2023_CC_SC_CC 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  UGRWCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Cheryl Cwelich, Water Resource Specialist 

DATE: May 15, 2023  

SUBJECT: Wet Meadows Program Update (May) 

 
During the month of May, the following activities have commenced or been completed in the 

Gunnison Basin Wet Meadows & Riparian Restoration Collaborative (GBWMRRC): 

 

Notable Activities Completed or in Progress: 

• 2023 Season Kick-off: 

o On May 3rd, Max Sawyer started in his role as the Field Supervisor of the 

sagebrush steppe and wet meadows conservation crew.  

o The sagebrush steppe conservation crew started work on May 8th with a week of 

onboarding, including crew dynamics, crew safety, area familiarization, partner 

introductions, project overview and field training.  

o During the week of May 15th, the crew trained and conducted wet meadow 

structure maintenance on U.S. Forest Service (USFS) and Bureau of Land 

Management (BLM) land.  

o Restoration contractor, Shawn Conner of BIO-Logic, Inc., along with project 

partners and staff joined private property owners on May 12th and May 19th to 

assess and design wet meadows treatments for those properties.  

o Staff joined representatives from Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS), 

U.S. Fish & Wildlife and High Country Conservation Advocates (HCCA) on May 

18th to plan for a large private lands project in August.  

• Grant & Funding Opportunities:  

o Staff are waiting to hear on the status of the $4.6 million pre-proposal to the 

America the Beautiful Challenge grant.   

• Research:  

o The USGS has finalized preliminary watershed modeling of Taylor Park to assess 

the effects of wetland restoration treatments on hydrology and will present their 

findings to the Watershed Management Planning Committee on May 17th.  A 

formal proposal with a statement of work is forthcoming.  

• Other:  

o There are no new updates on the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Gunnison 

Sage-grouse (GUSG) Draft Resource Management Plan 

Assessment/Environmental Impact Statement (RMPA/EIS):  

▪ Once the administrative draft RMPA/Draft EIS is complete, the BLM will 

send to coopering agencies for review, anticipated in “early summer ’23.” 

 



MINUTES 

Taylor Local Users Group 

May 5th, 2023 
 

TLUG Attendees: 

     TLUG Representatives Present: 

Ryan Birdsey (Flatwater Recreation) 

Don Sabrowski (Chair) 

Mark Schumacher (Boating Interests) 

David Fisher (Property Owners) 

Roark Kiklevich (Wade Fishing via Zoom) 

Ernie Cockrell (Taylor Place via Zoom) 

 

TLUG Representatives Absent: 

Andy Spann (Agricultural) 

 

Others in person: 

Beverly Richards (UGRWCD) 

Sonja Chavez (UGRWCD) 

Bill Gallenbeck (Taylor Dam Outlet Operations) 

Sue Uerling (UGRWCD) 

Alana Nichols (UGRWCD) 

Cheryl Cwelich (UGRWCD) 

Dustin Brown (Scenic River Tours) 

 

By Zoom: 

Erik Knight (BOR 

Dave Gochis (UCAR) 

Steve Anders (USGS) 

John Bocchino (Riffle and Rise LLC) 

Jay Whitacre (Irwin Guides) 

Roark Kiklevich (Wade Fishing) 

Kestrel Kunz (American Whitewater) 

 

 

 

 



 

 

I. Introduction & Approval of Minutes: 
 

Following introductions Don Sabrowski welcomed the newest TLUG member, David 

Fisher.  

 

Sonja Chavez distributed a draft letter of support to the TLUG describing the project 

proposal to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Snow Water Supply Forecasting 

(R23AS00079) grant. The Upper Gunnison River Basin Snow Water Measurement draft 

project proposal identifies three critical snowpack water supply measurement activities: 

1) Conduct annual airborne LiDAR measurement snow flights (2 per year for 3 years) to 

obtain highly accurate snow depth and SWE data, 2) coordinate the data and 

expand/utilize our existing SNOTEL and snolite ground stations, and 3) install a series of 

LoRaWan towers and soil moisture measurement devices to refine model output.  

Sonja Chavez would like TLUG’s agreement to have chairman Sabrowski sign. She 

mentioned the grant does not require a match, but it is recommended. Since the 

UGRWCD board of directors’ support ASO forecast measurements, she may be initially 

asking them for $20,000 per year to match this grant. Sonja believes the District can 

match a minimum of $150,000 through in-kind services. All information for this grant is 

public and the model measurements will be an open source. 

David Fisher asked if details on results will be visible. All information for this grant is 

public and the model measurements will be an open source. 

Sonja Chavez mentioned the focused watershed locations for measurements will be the 

East, Taylor and Upper Ohio Creek.  

Mark Schumacher made a motion to approve the letter of support for the WaterSMART 

grant application for ASO flights.  Ryan Birdsey seconded, and the motion carried. 

 

II. CBRFC Water Supply Update and USBR Model Forecast: Erik Knight 

presented the CBRFC forecast. He mentioned the May forecast came back unchanged 

from the mid-April forecast. The inflows to Taylor Park Reservoir are still 120% of 

average. It is possible for peak flows to be pushed back a few days in June with cooler 

temperatures in the forecast. It is still considered a wet category year with a required 

flushing flow of 10 days at 445 cfs. The model is still projecting Taylor Park Reservoir to 

reach almost full capacity with a max fill just 1.7 feet below spillway crest. The end of 

October storage content is still forecasted to be 75,000 acre-feet. 



Based on the CBRFC forecast, the current release is at 250 cfs and will increase to 300 

cfs on May 10th. In the first week of June the flow releases will increase to meet the 10 

days at 445 cfs.  

The Reservoir will have no issue reaching the average year content. The projected 

inflows are in the upper 15th percentile of historic inflows and the SWE in the Taylor 

River Basin is 126% of median. Over the last week there has been rapid snow melt 

causing a 30%-35% decrease in snowpack as measured at two SNOTEL sites. The 

monthly snow accumulation for the Upper Gunnison in April is 83% of average with the 

overall current season at 114% of average. 

III. Latest UCAR WRF-Hydro Model Forecast: David Gochis presented the latest 

WRF-Hydro model forecast. He mentioned there have been no ASO flights since the 

April forecast and Jeff Deems is still expecting to have an ASO flight around mid to late 

May. The snowpack had a 35% loss from peak values since the last assessment. The East 

is now projected to have 303,000 acre-feet. 

Don Sabrowski asked Steve Anders when gages on Texas and Willow will be online. 

Steve Anders said all gages are online except for maybe the site on Elk River.  Don 

Sabrowski asked how the sites had held up through the winter. Steve Anders said there 

was no damage from snow or ice to the gages and the sensors are responding with no 

issues.  

 

IV. Preliminary TLUG Draft Operational Release Recommendations: 

Mark Schumacher asked Erik Knight if there is a reason that the required 10-day release 

is done at the start of June, typically during peak runoff,  rather than releasing it earlier.  

Erik Knight said historically it is done in the 1st week in June but it could be moved to 

sooner or later depending upon if issues are occurring on East River. He said releases 

could be adjusted but it doesn’t make a huge difference.  

Erik mentioned that changing peak flow releases to late May will only be 50 cfs 

difference. If anyone would like to push peak flow releases to the last week of May, he 

can add that to the model. 

Roark Kiklevich agreed to changing peak flow releases. He said the East River peaked at  

1,700 cfs the day before the meeting. He said an earlier flow release is better as long as it 

is not impacting the rainbow trout spawn. He also believed the East River will be flowing 

at 3,000 cfs by June 10th and may even be pushing 4,000 cfs. 

Sonja Chavez will reach out to Dan Brauch about moving peak release flows as it relates 

 to the rainbow trout spawn. 

Ryan Birdsey also agreed to changing peak flow releases because there are predicted 

flood stages for the town of Gunnison. 



Ernie Cockrell made a motion to change the peak flow releases to the last week of May 

instead of the 1st week in June.  Roark Kiklevich seconded the motion and the motion 

carried.  

Erik Knight said he will move the 10 days at 445 cfs to begin on Friday, May 26th.  

V. Miscellaneous Updates: 

Sonja Chavez responded to an emergency operation project in the East River Basin. The 

river broke the bank and was flooding through private property onto Crested Butte Land 

Trust property. There could be negative impacts to public roads and to some GCEA 

infrastructure. UGRWCD offered to make $2,000 available for emergency funding to 

stabilize the bank and protect public infrastructure. She said it was important to act 

quickly to prevent negative impacts.  

Don Sabrowski asked what is causing the riverbank to break and flood the ranch. 

Sonja Chavez said the ranch has had flooding issues in the past but this year the riverbank 

broke at a new upstream point (Post meeting note: This is where the CBLT has proposed 

river restoration work). 

Mark Schumacher said he doesn’t think it was a good idea to go ahead and grant 

emergency funds to the private ranch. He believes once word gets out more private 

property owners will expect the District to help them with other flood issues. 

Sonja Chavez said the action was taken because it will affect public property and 

potentially the flow of the East River. (Post meeting note: CBLT has a 2023 UGRWCD 

grant award for river restoration work in this area). 

VI. Citizens Comments: 

Dustin asked if it would be possible to reduce flows while tree removal is being done on 

the Taylor River. There are no trees that need to be removed at the moment but, 

hypothetically speaking, if a tree did need to be removed and flows are running high the 

damaged trees could put bridges in jeopardy. 

Erik said it might be possible, but we would need to add it to the model to see if all other 

operations could still be met. Sonja Chavez and Erik Knight will have further discussions 

on the issue. 

      Ryan Birdsey asked if there are any emergency planning in place.  Sonja Chavez doesn’t 

 think so, but the UGRWCD has asked to be involved in County emergency response 

 planning. 

 John Bocchino asked Erik Knight when will the flush of the Black Canyon begin and at 

 what flow.  Erik Knight said it still needs to be determined. Once Paonia Reservoir starts 

 spilling there will be a spring peak operation centered around that.  

 



VII. Schedule Next Meeting: 

Next meeting planned for Tuesday June 6th at 12:00 pm.  

This meeting was adjourned: 1:22 p.m. by Chair Don Sabrowski.  

 



 

1 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  UGRWCD Board of Directors  

FROM: Sue Uerling, Adm. Asst./Comm. Support Specialist 

DATE: May 15, 2023  

SUBJECT: Education and Outreach Update 

 

 

The following is a brief update on Education and Outreach action items included in the 2023 plan: 

 

• PROMOTIONAL ITEMS:   

One thousand stickers with the “Save Me” water drop hero logo have been printed and nearly 400 

stickers were distributed at Ag Venture Day to the students. Twenty-two teachers and volunteers also 

received goodie bags with UGRWCD t-shirts and water bottles. 

 

The District logo was used for a vehicle decal and the decals were affixed to both of the back doors on 

the new Toyota Tacoma. 

 

• OUTREACH:  General Counsel John McClow met with a group of Colorado College students on April 

26th for a discussion on water law.  UGRWCD t-shirts and water bottles were given to each of the 

students.  

 

• COMMUNITY AND RIVER CLEAN-UP DAY:  On Saturday, May 13th, the District sponsored 

“Tacos for Trash” with free pulled pork tacos from 5B’s BBQ for all volunteers who picked up trash in 

the city and at the Whitewater Park.  The District also provided some t-shirts and water bottles as raffle 

prizes. 

 

• ART AND PHOTOS:   Attached are some posters from the “Arteries of the Earth” art show/education 

program to be held at the Gunnison Arts Center on Friday, June 2, 2023 at 5:00 p.m.  The District 

supported this program with a Mini-Grant of $500.  Please feel free to print the posters and display them 

at your business or other public places.  Artist Colt Maule will give a brief presentation at 7 p.m. with an 

introduction from a UGRWCD staff member. 

 

In addition to the posters, please enjoy the following photos from Ag Venture Days at the Fred Field 

Center on May 8 and 9, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

 
 



 

4 

 

 



 

5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The water trailer was a hit 

at the 2023 Ag Venture 

Days.  So was the 

Cattlemen’s Day Queen! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Digging in the sand to make the rivers and 

banks is always fun! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bev, Sue and Alana 

all helped with the 

water trailer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For 2023, there were 

classes from 2nd grade 

through 5th grade 

from both Gunnison 

and Crested Butte. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The students learned that 

vegetation on river banks can  

help prevent erosion caused 

by the river’s flow. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This class did a great job 

of demonstrating the 

differences in stream 

flows for a straight river 

versus a meandering 

river. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sonja, Sue and 

Caree Musick of the 

City of Gunnison 

helped register 

volunteers and hand 

out tacos for trash 

from 5B’s BBQ at 

the Community and 

River Clean-up on 

May 13th. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jason Lakey, Andy Sovick and nearly 50 other 

volunteers from the Gunnison Waves and friends 

of the White Water Park helped pick up trash 

branches and dog poo. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Volunteers of all ages helped with the 

river clean up. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After the river was all cleaned up, the 

Gunnison Waves didn’t let the storm 

clouds deter them from a little surfing. 



AGENDA ITEM 6
Scientific Endeavors Update



AGENDA ITEM 6
Gunnison Basin Roundtable



AGENDA ITEM 6
Gunnison River Festival Update



1 
GRF Memo (May)_SC_CC 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  UGRWCD Board 

DATE: May 15, 2023  

SUBJECT: Gunnison River Festival (GRF) Memo - May 

 

Events: 

• On April 27th, the Director and Secretary attended the Gunnison Angling Society’s Fly 
Fishing Film Tour and presented on river safety, etiquette and stewardship, along with 
the remaining season schedule of events.  

• American Whitewater hosted “Stoke the Flows” Trivia Night at Tully’s in Crested Butte 
South. As sponsors of the event the Director and Secretary provided event support and 
presented on the GRF schedule of events and mission to be “A River Hero,” meaning 
river safety, etiquette and stewardship.  

• GRF Director and Secretary and UGRWCD staff helped host the Community Clean-Up 
at the Gunnison Whitewater Park on May 13th.  

Public Relations & Outreach: 

• The Gunnison County Times ran an article on the Gunnison River Festival, its history 
and the 2023 schedule in their April 20th publication. 

• The 2023 river festival poster has been posted around town at various businesses and 
public locations.  

• A full color version of 2023 river festival poster with QR code will be placed in the “The 
Shopper” during the May 17th run.  

• The Crested Butte News will run a color version of the 2023 river festival poster with QR 
code on May 18th.  

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM 6
STOR COMMITTEE UPDATE



AGENDA ITEM 6
CBLT Long Lake Planning Committee



AGENDA ITEM 7
Miscellaneous Matters





5 <---- Month to Summarize (change this number to look at a different month)
PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO REVISION

Daily Summary for Month --> May

1st Fill  2nd Fill  Other Aspinall BP Accnt AU Accnt 1st Fill Contract Tot 1st fill

Day of 
Month

Silver Jack 
Reservoir & 
Juniors In 

Priority 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

TP 
Releases 
from TP 
1st Fill 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

Excess 
Released 
TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

Gun 
Tunnel 
(GT) 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat 
Inflow 

and TP 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day 
Average 
Excess 

TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day Ave. 
GT 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat Inflow 
and TP 
Inflow    
(cfs)

TP Res. 
Content 

(af)

TP - 
USGS 
outflow 

(cfs)

TP 
Compute
d Inflow 

(cfs)

1st Fill - 
Storage -

in TP 
(af)

2nd Fill -
Storage 
- in TP 

(af)

Other 
Account 
Storage 
in TP - 
Storage 

- (af)

AU 
Storag
e in TP 
- (af)

SJ Res 
Content 

(af)

SJ Inflow 
to 

Reservoir 
Storage 

(cfs)

BP - 
Storage - 
in SJ (af)

AU 
Water - 

Storage - 
in SJ (af)

BM Res 
Content 

(af)

MP Res 
Content 

(af)

CR Res 
Content 

(af)

AU 
Change 

In 
Storage 

(af)

Computed 
rel from 
CR (cfs)

AU inflow 
below TP 

& with 
AU Aug 
Rel (cfs) #REF!

UGRWC
D 

Contract 
water     
(af)

Gun. 
River 
below 
East 

Portal    
(cfs)

Total 
Gunnison 

Tunnel 
Divs (cfs)

GT Divs - 
AU inflow 
minus TP 
released 

inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
TP 

Released 
Inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
SJ 

Storage 
Inflow by 
AU Exch 

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
UGRWC

D 
Contract 
Water 

Rel    
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
Rel from 
2nd Fill 

for 
Rec/Fish  

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
1st Fill 

Credit in 
BM     
(cfs) #REF!

Remain. 
1st Fill 

Credits in 
TP and 

AU      
(af)

(1) (2) (3) (5) (6) (7) (8) (11) (14) (15) (19) (25) (30) (34) (36) (39) (43) (47) (49) (77) (100) (124) (125) (127) #REF! #REF! (128) (131) (132) (133) (134) (135) (136) (137) #REF! (140)

1 1 1     61,457 238 367     2,694 81 2,694 0  111,130 16,365  1,088    648 440   0 0     
2 1 1     61,706 252 381     2,861 84 2,861 0 372,579 110,102 17,080  1,229    787 442   0 0     
3 1 1     62,115 253 463     3,032 86 3,032 0  110,227 16,850  1,228    787 441   0 0     
4 1 1     62,618 253 510     3,229 100 3,229 0  110,949 16,920  1,230    787 443   0 0     
5 1 1     62,945 253 421     3,381 77 3,381 0  111,556 16,932  1,242    798 444   0 0     
6 1 1     63,213 254 392     3,381 0 3,381 0  111,967 16,592  1,259    813 446   0 0     
7 1 1     63,480 254 392     3,281 0 3,281 0  111,840 16,947  1,261    812 449   0 0     
8 1 1     63,733 255 386     3,198 0 3,198 0  111,674 16,537  1,339    808 531   0 0     
9 1 1     64,110 255 449     3,244 24 3,244 0  111,627 16,414  1,405    805 600   0 0     
10 1 1     64,517 285 494     3,352 55 3,352 0  111,524 16,540  1,403    806 597   0 0     
11 1 1     64,849 303 474     3,359 4 3,359 0  111,216 16,531  1,511    783 728   0 0     
12 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
13 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
14 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
15 1 1 0   0  
16 1 1 0   0  
17 1 1 0   0  
18 1 1 0   0  
19 1 1 0   0  
20 1 1 0   0  
21 1 1 0   0  
22 1 1 0   0  
23 1 1 0   0  
24 1 1 0   0  
25 1 1 0   0  
26 1 1 0   0  
27 1 1 0   0  
28 1 1 0   0  
29 1 1 0   0  
30 1 1 0   0  
31 1 1 0   0  

Total 31 31 0 0 0 0 2,855 4,729 511 0 14,194 0 8,634 5,560 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tot (af) 0 0 0 0 5,663 9,379 1,014 0 28,154 0 17,126 11,028 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 1 1 0 0 0 0 61,457 0 367 0 0 0 0 2,694 0 2,694 0 372,579 110,102 16,365 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Max 1 1 0 0 0 0 64,849 303 510 0 0 0 0 3,381 100 3,381 0 372,579 111,967 17,080 0 1,511 0 0 0 813 728 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Annual Summary (all values in ac-ft)  Note: Reservoir content is the end of the month content 
(days) (days) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af)

Nov 30 30     66,960 4,948 4,256     1,683 128 1,683 0  104,983 17,015  21,954   21,471 483   0     
Dec 31 31     66,268 5,038 4,346     1,869 186 1,869 0  102,835 16,551  23,103   21,323 1,780   0     
Jan 31 31     65,349 5,055 4,136     1,927 75 1,927 0  104,486 16,473  22,707   20,775 1,932   0     
Feb 28 28     64,110 4,868 3,629     1,868 5 1,868 0  107,557 16,572  20,732   19,232 1,500   0     
Mar 31 31     62,975 5,384 4,249     1,803 19 1,803 0  108,979 16,412  23,168   21,293 1,876   0     
Apr 30 30     61,209 8,869 7,102     2,534 889 2,534 0  110,250 16,741  40,501   21,646 18,855   0     
May 31 31     5,663    28,154   17,126 11,028       
Jun 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Jul 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Aug 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Sep 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Oct 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Total 365 365 0 0 0 0 39,825 27,718 1,302 0 180,319 0 142,866 37,453 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 28 28 0 0 0 0 61,209 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,803 0 1,803 0 0 102,835 16,412 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Max 31 31 0 0 0 0 66,268 8,869 7,102 0 0 0 0 2,534 889 2,534 0 0 110,250 16,741 0 40,501 0 0 21,646 18,855 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Type of Water Diverted into Tunnel

TO

Taylor Park Reservoir Aspinall Unit GUNNISON TUNNEL ALLOCATION
River Call Average Flow Reservoir

Silver Jack Reservoir
Reservoir Reservoir Contents Total Aspinall Unit Inflow Streamflow and Divs



AGENDA ITEM 8
Citizens Comments



AGENDA ITEM 9
Future Meetings



FUTURE MEETINGS/EVENTS

 Deadline for Letters to Judge for UGRWCD Board Terms - May 26, 5:00 PM
 Memorial Day, Offices Closed - May 29, 2023
 Financial Audit by Paul Miller - June 5-9, 2023
 TLUG Meeting - June 6, 2023 - 12:00 PM
 Watershed Management Planning Committee Mtg. - June 14, 2023 - 1:30 PM
 UGRWCD sponsors the 23rd Annual Pike Fishing Derby, Taylor Reservoir - 

June 17, 2023 - 7 AM - 5 PM
 GRF Taylor Down River Race - June 23, 2023 - 4 PM
 UGRWCD Annual Board Meeting - June 26, 2023 - 5:30 PM
 Independence Day, Offices Closed - July 4, 2023



AGENDA ITEM 10
Summary of Action Items



AGENDA ITEM 11
Adjournment



 

 

 

Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Lake City Fire Station 
131 North Henson Street 

Lake City, CO  81235 
 

AGENDA 
ANNUAL MEETING 

May 22, 2023 
3:00 P.M. 

 
 

3:00 p.m. 1. Call to Order 

3:02 p.m. 2. Agenda Approval 

3:05 p.m. 3. Election of Officers 

3:15 p.m. 4. Approval of May 24, 2022 Annual Meeting Minutes 

3:25 p.m. 6. 2023 Budget Summary Review, Discussion and Adoption  

   (7/1/2023-6/30/2024) 

3:35 p.m. 7. Current Operations Status 

• County Staff Training Update on Gate Operation 

• 2023 Operations Discussion 

4:00 p.m. 8. Miscellaneous Matters 

4:30 p.m. 9. Unscheduled Citizens  

4:35 p.m.  10. Future Meetings 

4:40 p.m.   11. Adjournment 

 

 
 
Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  All 
times are approximate.  Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings have documented minutes and 
action can be taken on any item. The Board may address individual agenda items at any time or in any order to 

accommodate the needs of the Board and the audience.  



LAKE SAN CRISTOBAL WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - SPECIAL MEETING  

In Person and via Zoom Teleconference 

May 24, 2022 

3:00 p.m. 

 

The Board of Directors of the Lake San Cristobal Water Activity Enterprise conducted their 

annual meeting on Tuesday, May 24, 2022, at 3:00 p.m. in the Lake City Firehall 

 

Board members present:  Tom Carl, Robert Hurd, Bill Nesbitt, Michelle Pierce, and Henry 

Woods. 

 

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager 

Grant Huston, Silver World Publishing 

John McClow, UGRWCD General Counsel (via Zoom) 

John Perusek, UGRWCD Board Member 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

Jill Steele, UGRWCD Accountant 

Sue Uerling, UGRWCD Administrative Assistant (via Zoom) 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

President Michelle Pierce called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Director Tom Carl moved and Director Bill Nesbitt seconded approval of the agenda as 

presented. The motion carried.  

 

3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 

The current slate of officers agreed to remain in their roles for the 2022-2023 fiscal year as 

follows:  Michelle Pierce, President; Henry Woods, Vice President; and, Bill Nesbitt, Secretary-

Treasurer. 

 

Director Robert Hurd moved and Director Bill Nesbitt seconded approval of the fiscal year 

2022-2023 slate of officers.  The motion carried.  

 

4. APPROVAL OF THE MAY 25, 2021 ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES 

 



 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Robert Hurd seconded approval of the May 25, 

2021 meeting minutes as circulated. The motion carried.    

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 5, 2022 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 

Director Henry Woods moved and Director Robert Hurd seconded approval of the April 5, 

2022 special meeting minutes as circulated.  The motion carried. 

 

6.  REVIEW OF BUDGET SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION AND ADOPTION OF 

2022-23 BUDGET (7/1/2022-6/30/2023) 

 

UGRWCD General Manager Sonja Chavez briefly highlighted some of the line items of 

the 2022-23 budget.  Director Bill Nesbitt asked if any LSCWAE units were sold since 

the previous annual meeting. Water Resource Specialist Beverly Richards replied that 

just one unit had been sold. 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Tom Carl seconded approval of the 2022-23 

LSCWAE Budget as circulated.  The motion carried. 

 

7. CURRENT OPERATIONS 

 

Director Robert Hurd reported that he has been training a couple of technicians from the 

Hinsdale County staff on the operations of the LSC outlet gate.  It is Robert’s hope that he can 

slowly transition out of his role and turn over the operations to the county.  There was some 

discussion about whether the District should help fund the cost of training operations for the 

county. 

 

Robert reported that since Obermeyer Hydro had been out in 2021 to service the outlet gate, it 

was keeping streamflow readings much more accurately and without as many adjustments. 

 

UGRWCD General Manage Sonja Chavez reported that there is the potential for an Instream 

Flow Administrative Call on the Gunnison River possibly late summer or early fall.  Sonja 

explained that the Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB) monitors streamflows to ensure 

decreed instream flow (ISF) water rights are protected. If the streamflow drops lower than the 

amount decreed to a water right, and that right is in priority, the CWCB could place an 

administrative call for water from the river.  Sonja will keep the LSCWAE apprised of any such 

calls.  

 

8. MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

 



Sonja reported that she had received word from Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) that they 

were going to try to place a staff inspector to inspect boats launched on Lake San Cristobal for 

Aquatic Nuisance Species.  At this time, CPW cannot commit to funding this inspection station 

every day, but they hope to have it manned at least during the weekends. 

 

9. UNSCHEDULED CITIZENS 

 

Grant Huston of SilverWorld Publishing appreciated being invited and it was noted that the 

UGRWCD Education and Outreach Committee had decided to continue the weekly water 

advertisements in SilverWorld, which Mr. Huston appreciates. 

 

10. FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

The next regular LSCWAE Board meeting will be the annual meeting in May, 2023. 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Board President Michelle Pierce adjourned the May 24, 2022 annual meeting at 3:48 p.m.  

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

________________________ 

Michelle Pierce 

President 

 

 

 

________________________ 

Bill Nesbitt 

Secretary-Treasurer 



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 3
Election of Officers



LAKE SAN CRISTOBAL WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE 2023 BUDGET 
July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 
D R A F T 

2021 2022 2022 2023 
ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET 
7/1/21 - 7/1/22 - 7/1/22 - 7/1/23 - 

6/30/2022 6/30/2023  5/10/2023 6/30/2024 
REVENUE 
Water Sales & Assessments & Admin. Fees on Contracts $  10,965 $10,965 $10,845 $ 10,965 
Water Sale - United Company, one-time purchase    2,990 - - - 
Three Member Entities' Fees on Un-sold Base Units (see Note) 

UGRWCD 13,464 13,463 13,464 13,464 
Hinsdale County 13,464 13,377 13,379 13,379 
Town of Lake City 6,152 6,150 6,152 6,152 

Interest on Investments - - - - 
Additional Contributions by Member Entities - - - - 
Other Income - - - - 
TOTAL REVENUE $ 47,035 $43,954 $ 43,840 $ 43,960 

EXPENSES 
Legal Expenses $ - $ - $ - 
Construction - - - 
Outlet Works Repair 

- $
-
1,798 6,000 - 6,000

Equipment Repair 6,262 2,000 - 2,000
Audit & Accounting (every 5 years) - - - -
Public Outreach 1,500 - 1,500
Operations - USGS Gage 12,636 12,270 12,636 13,556
Operations - Gate Maintenance Contract Work 842 3,000 291 3,000 
Operating Expenses - Hinsdale County 4,000 - 4,000
Operating Expenses - Town of Lake City - - - - 
Operating Expenses - UGRWCD - 5,278 864 5,278
Utilities 2,780 2,500  2,218 2,500
Office Expenses 66 450 - 450

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 24,384 $ 36,998 $ 16,009 $ 38,284 
Revenue Over (Under) Expenses $ 22,651 $ 6,956 $ 27,831 $ 5,676 

Contribution to Capital Reserve $  1,815 $ 1,815 $ 1,815 $ 1,815 
Sales price per base unit $ 55.00 
Annual assessment per base unit $ 4.50 

NOTE: Break out of fees charged to member entities: 

Total base units originally available: 9500 
Base units each entity (9500/3) 
Base units sold per entity 
Base units remaining per entity 
Fees on unsold base units per entity @ $4.50 
Total base units remaining for sale 7332 

Hinsdale Town of 
UGRWCD County Lake City 

3,166 3,167 3,167 
174 194 1,800 

2,992 2,973 1,367 
$ 13,464 $ 13,379 $ 6,152 



 

LAKE SAN CRISTOBAL WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE 

 2023-2024 BUDGET 

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 

 

 

We, the undersigned officers of the Board of Directors of the Lake San Cristobal Water Activity 

Enterprise, do hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the 2023-2024 Lake San Cristobal 

Water Activity Enterprise Budget as adopted by the Board of Directors on May 22, 2023. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Michelle Pierce, Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

William J. Nesbitt, Secretary/Treasurer 



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 7
Current Operations



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 8
Miscellaneous Matters



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 9

Citizen Comments



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 10

Future Meetings



LSCWAE AGENDA ITEM 11
Adjournment


	Agenda - May 22, 2023
	Agenda Item 3 - Consent Agenda Items
	Approval of April 24, 2023 Minutes
	Approval of May 2, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes
	Monthly Budget Summary
	Consideration of Expenses

	Agenda Item 4 - Presentation by Jeff Derry, Dust on Snow in San Juan Basin
	Agenda Item 5 - Basin Water Supply Report
	Agenda Item 6 - General Manager, Committee and Staff Updates
	Treasurer's Report
	General Manager's Update
	ACTION - Reclamation Grant Resolution

	Wet Meadows Program Update
	Taylor Local User's Group Update
	May 5, 2023 Meeting Summary

	Education and Outlook Update
	Scientific Endeavors
	Gunnison Basin Roundtable 
	Gunnison River Festival Update
	STOR Committee Update
	CBLT Long Lake Planning Committee

	Agenda Item 7 - Miscellaneous Matters
	Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet

	Agenda Item 8 - Citizens Comments
	Agenda Item 9 - Future Meetings
	Agenda Item 10 - Summary of Meeting Action Items
	Agenda Item 11 - Adjournment
	LSCWAE Annual Meeting Agenda - May 22, 2023
	LSCWAE Agenda Item 4 - Approval of May 24, 2022 Annual Meeting Minutes

	LSCWAE Agenda Item 3 - Election of LSCWAE Officers for 2023
	Agenda Item 6 - Review of Budget Summary and Adoption of 2023-2024 Budget
	LSCWAE Agenda Item 7 - Current Operations Status
	County Staff Training on Gate Operation
	2023 Operations Discussion

	LSCWAE Agenda Item 8 - Miscellaneous Matters
	LSCWAE Agenda Item 9 - Citizen Comments
	LSCWAE Agenda Item 10 - Future Meetings?
	LSCWAE Agenda 11 - Meeting Adjournment



